



Volleyball Club Constitution

[1] Name

[1.1] The name of the club shall be The University of Bristol Volleyball Club. The club may also be known as UOBVC (abbreviation of name).

[1.2] The University of Bristol Volleyball Club will be affiliated to the University of Bristol Students Union.

[2] Aims and Objectives

The aims and objectives shall be (to be specified in full):

The Club/Society shall abide by the Unions Equal Opportunities, Safe Space and Harassment Policies, along with the Code of Conduct for Student Groups, and any other policies laid down by the Unions Boards of Trustees.

[3] Affiliation

[3.1] The Club shall form a part of the University of Bristol Students' Union, and as such, shall adhere to all guidelines and policies approved by its members at The University of Bristol Students Union Annual Members Meetings.

[3.2] The Club may also be affiliated to Volleyball England (National Governing Body).

[4] Membership

[4.1] Full membership is open to all full members of the Union by application to the Club/Society, via the online membership system.

[4.2] Associate membership of any Club is open to all other persons. These persons must be Associate members of the Union, which can be purchased through the Union website.

[4.3] Associate members are also required to purchase Sport & Health membership (if joining a Sports Club).

[4.4] No less than two-thirds of the Club members shall be full members of the Union.

[4.5] The club Secretary/Captain shall keep a list of all members, differentiating between full and associate members.

[4.6] There shall be a subscription fee levied for membership, which shall be fixed at the discretion of the committee, being no less than the minimum rate set by the Sport & Health Executive Committee (£5). This shall be paid by each member, via the University of Bristol Students Union website, according to current policy. Members will not be permitted to take part in any Club activity until their subscription has been paid with the exception of the first two weeks of term.

[5] Privileges of Membership

[5.1] Only full members may sit on the committee.

[5.2] All categories of membership shall have equal rights of voting, attending meetings etc.

University of Bristol students creating a world class student life for them



[6] The Committee

[6.1] There shall be a committee of the Club which shall be the executive decision making body, responsible for the day to day running of the Club, in accordance with the aims and objectives outlined above.

[6.2] The committee shall, collectively, along with their own job roles, be responsible for upholding the University of Bristol Students Union policies and procedures, as laid out in the Byelaws.

[6.3] Committee members shall be elected at the Club's Annual General Meeting (AGM), and hold office for one year.

[6.4] The Club committee shall have a minimum of three roles, a Club Captain, Treasurer and Secretary, at any one time.

[6.5] The Club Captain and Treasurer shall be a full members of the Union, with the Treasurer not being in their final year of study if the Club still operates an external bank account.

[6.6] Quoracy for committee meetings shall be set at 50% of the post filled positions, plus one.

[6.7] All committee meetings must be minuted by the secretary (or other committee member if they are unavailable) and the minutes circulated to the committee before the next committee meeting.

[6.8] Duties of the committee positions include:

(i) Club Captain – Acting as the principal officer, spokesperson for the Club, and key contact with the University of Bristol Students Union, the Club Captain leads and co-ordinate the Club, Committee and members. They shall be responsible for the planning, organising, and chairing of committee meetings, and for protecting the interests of the Club in accordance with its aims and objectives..

(ii) Secretary – The Secretary's prime function is to administer the running of the Club, keeping accurate records and to communicate with the committee and Club members. They will also be responsible for communication with student media, businesses/organisations and other people outside of the club, aiming to maintain and increase the reputation of the club within the University and in Bristol. This involves overseeing the club's social media and email accounts and keeping them up-to-date. The club Secretary will also be responsible for obtaining sponsorship, alongside the Club Captain, Treasurer and Social Secretaries.

(iii) Treasurer – The Treasurer oversees and monitors the financial affairs of the Club, ensuring that the University of Bristol Students Union Financial Guidelines are adhered to. They are responsible for maintaining the club's record of its finances and ensuring they match with UBU's accounts. They are also responsible for investigating revenue streams to increase the funds the club has access to, including sponsorship.

(iv) 1st Team Captains (Men's and Ladies') - The 1st Team Captains are also responsible for being the main point of contact and spokesperson for their team, primarily involving the organisation of BUCS and other matches with UBU staff. 1st Team Captains may only be elected if they are currently a 1st Team player, unless under exceptional circumstances where the current committee and the 1st team coach agree that the candidate would be suitable for the position.

(v) 2nd Team Captains (Men's and Ladies') - 2nd Team Captains are responsible for being the main point of contact and spokesperson for their team, primarily involving the organisation of matches and competitions they take part in. 2nd Team Captains are allowed to try out for the 1st teams, but upon a successful trial they will still required to fulfill their 2nd Team Captain duties. If they would prefer not to do this, they can stand down from the committee to allow a re-election to take place after trials have been completed.

(vi) Social Secretaries (Men and Ladies) - Social secretaries will be required to organise all club socials throughout the year, with the help of other committee members. They will also be required to work with the Club Captain, Secretary and treasurer to obtain sponsorship for the club - particularly for sponsors that will coincide with social events.

(vii) Tournament & Events Secretary - This position will be responsible for organising individual events throughout the year, including but not isolated to preseason tournaments,

University of Bristol students creating a world class student life for them



fundraising events and tour.

[7] Honorary Positions

[Provision can be made for an Honorary President and Vice President(s) at the discretion of the Club]

[8] Financial

[8.1] All financial arrangements must be administered in accordance with the guidelines set out by the University of Bristol Students Union, as laid out in the 'How to set up and run a Sports Club or Society' handbook.

[8.2] The accounts of the Club shall be audited once a year by an external auditor, arranged by the University of Bristol Students Union Finance Department.

[8.3] A member of the Student Activities Team and Finance Team shall jointly be empowered to issue financial instructions on behalf of the Club if:

- (i) The Club fold with outstanding financial affairs, or
- (ii) change of mandate forms are not completed, and the previous Committee are out of contact, or
- (iii) financial irregularities are found.

[8.4] Under no circumstances will Club funds be distributed amongst members.

[8.5] Officers of the Club are not entitled to receive any payment from the Club, other than genuine out of pocket expenses.

[8.6] Social events may not be funded by the budget allocated by UBU.

[8.7] The Club may not enter into any contract or other legally binding arrangement without the permission of UBU.

[8.8] In the event that the Club is no longer able to carry out its activities, and thus folds, all assets and debts will revert back to the University of Bristol Students Union.

[9] General Meetings

[9.1] General meetings, to which all members are invited, shall be held as and when necessary.

[9.2] There shall be an Annual General Meeting (AGM) held that must include the election of the new committee for the following year.

[9.3] At least two weeks notice of the AGM shall be given by the Secretary to all members, and to the University of Bristol Students Union. An agenda must be sent out with at least 7 days notice.

[9.4] Quorum of such meetings shall be set at twice the committee size plus one.

[9.5] An Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) may be called by 5% of the membership of the Club by application to the Club Secretary/Captain. An EGM shall be called as specified on the application, but at least 7 days notice shall be given.

[10] Elections

[10.1] Elections shall be held at the Annual General Meeting (AGM), or online, to elect officers of the committee for the following session. Officers can only be removed from their posts by an EGM or AGM. Nominations must be received 7 days in advance.

[10.2] If committee positions are left unfilled after the AGM then the committee shall have the power to approve club members onto the committee to fill the vacant posts. Club members must be made aware of new Committee members approved by the Committee.

[10.3] Voting shall be by single transferable vote or first past the post and shall be conducted by a

University of Bristol students creating a world class student life for them



BRISTOL SU
the best student life

The Richmond Building
105 Queens Road, Clifton, Bristol BS8 1LN
Tel (0117) 331 8600
www.bristolsu.org.uk

show of hands if the position is uncontested, having asked the candidate to leave the AGM room. If the position is contested then ballot papers shall be issued to those voting, and the ballot papers counted by a committee member. At the discretion of the Committee, or at the request of any Club member, a secret ballot can be carried out.

[10.4] As soon as possible after the AGM, the Club Captain or Secretary must submit a sheet of contact details for the new committee to a member of the Student Activities Team.

[11] Constitutional Amendments

[11.1] Constitutional amendments can be passed at any General Meeting by two thirds of those present. Amendments will then require ratification by the Sport & Health Executive Committee.

Constitution updated: April 2018.

University of Bristol students creating a world class student life for them